
Kelso City Council Agenda 
Regular Meeting, 6:00 pm 

June 3, 2014 
City Hall, Council Chambers 

203 South Pacific 
Kelso, WA  98626 

 
 

                                **Special accommodations for the handicapped and hearing impaired are available 
 by special arrangement through the City Clerk’s Office at 360-423-0900** 

 
 
Invocation: 

      Pastor Vonda McFadden, Kelso First United Methodist Church 
  

 
Roll Call to Council Members: 

 
 
1. Approve Minutes: 

1.1. May 20, 2014 – Regular Meeting 
 
 

2. Public Hearings: 
2.1. Six Year Transportation Improvement Program, 2014-2019 
2.2. 2014-2018 Consolidated Plan – HOME Program 

 
 
3. Consent Items: 

3.1. Interlocal Agreement: Cowlitz County, Rural Economic Development Grant 
Funding – Visitors Center Improvements 

3.2. Interlocal Agreement: Cowlitz County, Rural Economic Development Grant 
Funding – West Main Street Revitalization Project 

 
 

4. Citizen Business: 
 
 

5. Council Business: 
5.1. 2014-2018 Consolidated Plan Approval 
5.2. 2015-2016 Budget Goals Discussion 

 
 
6. Action/Motion Items: 

6.1. Ordinance, 1st  Reading 
6.1.1. Energy Transmission Facilities Franchise Renewal, Weyerhaeuser/Norpac  

 



Kelso City Council Agenda 
Regular Meeting, 6:00 pm 

June 3, 2014 
City Hall, Council Chambers 

203 South Pacific 
Kelso, WA  98626 

 
 

6.2. Resolution 
6.2.1. Hearing Examiner Rules of Procedure 

6.3. Resolution 
6.3.1. Local Government Investment Pool 

 
 
Other Items: 

 City Manager Report 
 Staff/Dept Head Reports 
 Council Reports 
 Other Business 
 Executive Session 



KELSO CITY COUNCIL                                                                            May 20, 2014 
6:00 P.M.                                                                                       REGULAR MEETING 
 
Pastor Nick Stumbo, East Hills Alliance Church, gave the invocation.  Mayor David 
Futcher led the flag salute.  The Regular Meeting of the Kelso City Council was called to 
order by Mayor David Futcher.  Councilmembers in attendance were: Futcher, Schimmel, 
Franklin, Archer, McDaniel, Roberson and Myers.    
 
Minutes:  Upon motion by Councilmember Roberson, seconded by Councilmember 
Archer, ‘Approve the Minutes of the May 6, 2014 Regular Meeting,’ motion passed, all 
voting yes. 
 
PRESENTATIONS: 
  
Public Works 2013 Annual Report:  Public Works Superintendent Randy Johnson 
provided an overview of last year’s highlights for each division of the Public Works 
Department. 
 
Kelso Youth Baseball Stadium – Concessions Improvements:  2013 Kelso Little 
League Volunteer of the Year Pat Connors provided a presentation of the recent 
improvements to the concession stand at the little league baseball field located at Tam 
O’Shanter Park.  He commented on future projects for upgrading the baseball field and 
spoke of how contributions and volunteers make these improvements possible. 
 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting Award: City 
Manager Steve Taylor presented the award, established by the Government Finance 
Officers Association, to Finance Director Brian Butterfield.  This is the ninth consecutive 
year that Mr. Butterfield has received this award. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
 

1. Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Recommendation: 2014 Big Idea Project 
Approval.   

2. Auditing of Accounts:  $ 2,234,992.55                    
 
Upon motion by Councilmember Archer, seconded by Councilmember Schimmel, 
‘Approve the Consent Agenda and the Auditing of Accounts in the amount of 
$2,234,992.55,’ motion carried, all voting yes. 
 
CITIZEN BUSINESS: 
 
Johann R. Peters, 512 West Main Street, spoke about the pending street lights and 
striping on West Main Street.  He spoke of having a Tesla supercharging station located 
in the City of Kelso. 
 
 



Kelso City Council                               -2-                                  5/20/14 Regular Meeting 
 
Rick Von Rock, 400 North 7th Avenue, spoke about funding options for the 
Transportation Benefit District.  
 
Jim Hill, 1100 North 22nd Avenue, spoke about low barrier housing for women and 
children.   
 
Rod Wright, 97 Banyon Street, spoke about the assessment of fees to the citizens of 
Kelso. 
  
COUNCIL BUSINESS:   
 
Cowlitz County Corrections Jail Bed Rates:  Upon motion by Councilmember 
McDaniel, seconded by Councilmember Myers, ‘Approve the updated Interlocal 
Agreement with Cowlitz County for Use of Jail Facilities,’ motion carried, all voting yes. 
 
Council Rules of Procedure Taskforce:  Upon motion by Councilmember Schimmel, 
seconded by Councilmember Archer, ‘Create a taskforce for the review and creation of 
Council Rules of Procedure.’  By consensus of the Council, the following were assigned 
to the task force: 

 Gary Schimmel 
 Gary Archer 
 David Futcher 

 
Council Committee Assignments:  Upon motion by Councilmember McDaniel, 
seconded by Councilmember Roberson, ‘Reassign certain Standing Committee/Board 
Assignments.’ The assignments made were as follows: 

 SWEDC – Rick Roberson and Todd McDaniel 
 CAP Board – Todd McDaniel and Gary Archer 
 KDRA – Rick Roberson 
 Library Board – Gary Archer 
 Public Health – Dan Myers 

 
Councilmembers Futcher, Schimmel, Myers, McDaniel, Roberson and Archer voted yes.  
Councilmember Franklin voted no.  Motion passed 6 to 1. 
 
MOTION ITEMS:         
 
Ordinance No. 14-3824 – 2014 Budget Revision No.2:  The Deputy Clerk read the 
proposed ordinance by title only.  Upon motion by Councilmember Archer, seconded by 
Councilmember Myers, ‘Adopt Ordinance No. 14-3824, ‘AN ORDINANCE OF THE 
CITY OF KELSO RELATING TO PUBLIC EXPENDITURES AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF RCW 35A.34.150, FIXING THE 
AMOUNT OF MONEY REQUIRED TO MEET SUCH EMERGENCIES AND  
 



Kelso City Council                               -3-                                  5/20/14 Regular Meeting 
 
AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE OF MONEY NOT PROVIDED FOR IN THE 
2013-2014 BIENNIAL BUDGET OF THE CITY.’ Motion passed, all voting yes.                  
 
Ordinance No. 14-3825 – Zoning Map Amendment:  The Deputy Clerk read the 
proposed ordinance by title only.  Upon motion by Councilmember Schimmel, seconded 
by Councilmember Roberson, ‘Adopt Ordinance No. 14-3825, ‘AN ORDINANCE OF 
THE CITY OF KELSO AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY 
TO REFLECT THE CORRECT DESIGNATION OF CERTAIN PARCELS OF 
PROPERTY.’ Motion passed, all voting yes. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
Steve Taylor:   Gave a reminder to the Council for the HOME Consortium training 
session on June 4th, 6:00 p.m., at the Longview City Hall Training Room. 
 
COUNCIL REPORTS: 
 
Gary Schimmel:  No report. 
 
Jared Franklin:   No report. 
 
Dan Myers:  Provided an update on the Council Wahkiakum Council of Governments 
personnel changes. 
 
Gary Archer:  Provided an update on the last Park Board Meeting.  He commented that 
the Park Board is an advisory board that can only make recommendations to the City. 
 
Rick Roberson:  Commented about the Park Board’s Mill Street Park recommendation.   
 
Todd McDaniel:  No report. 
 
David Futcher:   No report. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
 
The Council convened into Executive Session at 6:55 p.m. to discuss pending litigation.     
The Executive Session is expected to last approximately 5 minutes.  The attorney was 
present and no action was taken. 
 
The Council reconvened into Regular Session at 7:00 p.m. 
 
There being no further business, Mayor Futcher adjourned the meeting at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 



Kelso City Council                               -4-                                  5/20/14 Regular Meeting 
 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
                                 MAYOR 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
                            CITY CLERK 



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE:    
Public Hearing for Resolution to amend the current 
Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program 
(2014-2019) 
 
 
 
PRESENTED BY:  
Michael Kardas, P.E. 
Community Development Director/City Engineer 

Agenda Item:   
 
Dept. of Origin: Community Dev/Engineering  
 
For Agenda of: June 3, 2014   
 
Cost of Item:    
 
City Manager: Steve Taylor   
 

 

AGENDA ITEM ATTACHMENTS:    
Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program 
 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
A public hearing is required to update the Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 











AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE:    
Public Hearing for 2014-2018 Consolidated 
Plan Approval 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTED BY:  
 
  

 
Agenda Item:    
 
Dept. of Origin:  May 21, 2014 
 
For Agenda of: June 3, 2014  
 
Originator: Julie Hourcle’, City of Longview   
 
 
 
City Attorney:       
 
City Manager:          
 

 

Agenda Item Attachments:    
The Draft 2014-2018 Consolidated Plan: http://www.mylongview.com/index.aspx?page=497 
 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
This Public Hearing is for the Draft 2014-2018 Consolidated Plan which has had its 30-day Public Review 
which ended May 30th.  There were minor staff changes and no comments received as of this writing. The 
Public Hearing is to collect final comments on the 2014-2018 Consolidated Plan.  This plan is required by the 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) to carry out its HOME Program, for the Cities of Kelso 
and Longview, and CDBG Program, for the City of Longview.   
 
The document can be found on the following website: http://www.mylongview.com/index.aspx?page=497. It 
contains the following chapters: Executive Summary, Process, Needs Assessment, Market Analysis, Strategic 
Plan, and Annual Action Plan.  It was required to be done in IDIS (Integrated Disbursement and Information 
System) on the computer and looks much different than the 2004-2008 or 2005-2013 version. 
 
The lead agency, the City of Longview, asks you to approve the 2014-2018 Consolidated Plan for submittal to 
HUD after the Public Hearing. 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
Motion to approve the 2014-2018 Consolidated Plan for HUD submittal. 

http://www.mylongview.com/index.aspx?page=497
http://www.mylongview.com/index.aspx?page=497


AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE:  INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
WITH COWLITZ COUNTY ACCEPTING RURAL 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANT FUNDING  
FOR THE KELSO VISITORS CENTER PARKING 
LOT IMPROVEMENTS. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTED BY:  
 
Steve Taylor 

 
Agenda Item:    
 
Dept. of Origin: City Manager   
 
For Agenda of: June 3, 2014_____________  
 
Originator: Steve Taylor    
 
 
 
City Attorney:     Janean Parker  
 
City Manager:       Steve Taylor   
 

 

Agenda Item Attachments:    
Interlocal Agreement with Cowlitz County – Grant Funding for Visitors Center Parking Lot 
Improvements 
 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
The City was awarded $19,000 by Cowlitz County from its Rural Economic Development Fund 
program to resurface the parking area at the Kelso Visitors Center.  The attached interlocal 
agreement authorizes the transfer of these funds for the specified purposes under the terms 
contained in the agreement. The City Council previously approved the application for these grant 
funds. 
 
OPTIONS: 

1. Move to approve the interlocal agreement with Cowlitz County for Rural Economic 
Development Funds for parking lot improvements at the Kelso Visitors Center in the amount of 
$19,000. 

2. Do not approve the interlocal agreement. 
3. Take no action and bring back for consideration at a future meeting. 

 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
Move to approve the interlocal agreement with Cowlitz County for the receipt of Rural Economic 
Development Funds for Kelso Visitors Center parking lot improvements in the amount of $19,000. 









AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE:  INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
WITH COWLITZ COUNTY ACCEPTING RURAL 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANT FUNDING  
FOR WEST MAIN STREET REVITALIZATION 
PROJECT. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTED BY:  
 
Steve Taylor 

 
Agenda Item:    
 
Dept. of Origin: City Manager   
 
For Agenda of: June 3, 2014_____________  
 
Originator: Steve Taylor    
 
 
 
City Attorney:     Janean Parker  
 
City Manager:       Steve Taylor   
 

 

Agenda Item Attachments:    
Interlocal Agreement with Cowlitz County – Grant Funding for West Main Street Revitalization Project 
 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
The City was awarded $120,000 by Cowlitz County from its Rural Economic Development Fund 
program for streetscape improvements to West Main Street as part of the City’s revitalization efforts 
along the corridor.  The attached interlocal agreement authorizes the transfer of these funds for the 
specified purposes under the terms contained in the agreement. The City Council previously approved 
the application for these grant funds. 
 
OPTIONS: 

1. Move to approve the interlocal agreement with Cowlitz County for Rural Economic 
Development Funds for the West Main Street Revitalization project in the amount of $120,000. 

2. Do not approve the interlocal agreement. 
3. Take no action and bring back for consideration at a future meeting. 

 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
Move to approve the interlocal agreement with Cowlitz County for the receipt of Rural Economic 
Development Funds for the West Main Street Revitalization Project in the amount of $120,000. 









AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE:    
2014-2018 Consolidated Plan Approval 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTED BY:  
 
  

 
Agenda Item:    
 
Dept. of Origin:  May 21, 2014 
 
For Agenda of: June 3, 2014  
 
Originator: Julie Hourcle’, City of Longview   
 
 
 
City Attorney:       
 
City Manager:          
 

 

Agenda Item Attachments:    
The Draft 2014-2018 Consolidated Plan: http://www.mylongview.com/index.aspx?page=497 
 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
This draft of the 2014-2018 Consolidated Plan which has had its 30-day Public Review ended May 30th.  There 
were minor staff changes and no comments received as of this writing. This plan is required by the 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) to carry out its HOME Program, for the Cities of Kelso 
and Longview, and CDBG Program, for the City of Longview.   
 
The document can be found on the following website: http://www.mylongview.com/index.aspx?page=497. It 
contains the following chapters: Executive Summary, Process, Needs Assessment, Market Analysis, Strategic 
Plan, and Annual Action Plan.  It was required to be done in IDIS (Integrated Disbursement and Information 
System) on the computer and looks much different than the 2004-2008 or 2005-2013 version. 
 
The lead agency, the City of Longview, asks you to approve the 2014-2018 Consolidated Plan for submittal to 
HUD after the Public Hearing. 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
Motion to approve the 2014-2018 Consolidated Plan for HUD submittal. 

http://www.mylongview.com/index.aspx?page=497
http://www.mylongview.com/index.aspx?page=497


AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE:  2015-16 Budget Goals 
Discussion 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTED BY:  
 
Steve Taylor 

 
Agenda Item:    
 
Dept. of Origin: City Council   
 
For Agenda of: February 4, 2014  
 
Originator: Steve Taylor    
 
 
 
City Attorney:      Janean Parker 
 
City Manager:       Steve Taylor   
 

 

Agenda Item Attachments:    
2014 Budget Goals & Action Plan 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
In developing the framework for the 2015-16 biennial budget, staff is seeking the Council’s policy 
direction and expectations of goals and objectives to be achieved over the next two years.  The 
Council previously approved the 2014 Budget Goals and Action Plan at the February 4th regular 
meeting, and the City is working to make measurable progress on the priorities listed in that plan. 
 
Staff will receive direction from the goals discussion and incorporate it into the budget process to 
determine priorities for program and service delivery within the constraints of the City’s projected 
resources.  Budget development will occur throughout the summer and brought back to Council for 
initial consideration in the fall.  Final adoption of the budget is required by the end of 2014. 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Discussion of City goals and objectives for the 2015-16 biennium and provision of policy direction to 
staff for incorporation into the draft budget.. 
 



 
2014 Budget Goals & Actions Plan 

 
 
Goal:  Well-maintained, reliable public infrastructure systems that encourage economic 
growth and enhance community quality. 
 

• Action:  Complete current phase of West Main Realignment Project. 
• Action:  Complete Water-Sewer-Drainage utility rate study. 
• Action:  Administer first full Transportation Benefit District funding cycle and deploy 

new resources in the most optimum fashion. 
• Action:  Enhance maintenance staffing levels in Public Works Department. 
• Action:  Research and evaluate adequate and sustainable funding sources for street 

maintenance. 
• Action:  Prepare options for restricting on-street parking in residential zones without 

adequate road width. 
 

 
Goal:  Community renewal and economic growth that provides sustainable resources for 
public services and facilities. 
 

• Action:  Draft, review, and adopt updated Comprehensive Plan and commence update 
to the City’s Development Code. 

• Action:  Adopt Shoreline Master Plan Update. 
• Action:  Manage implementation of the South Kelso Revitalization Strategies through 

resources provided by the Americorps Vista program. 
• Action:  Explore and implement improvements to the City’s nuisance and graffiti 

abatement effort. 
• Action:  Identify planning opportunities and inventory of funding resources for 

community revitalization in priority areas of Kelso (West Main, Town Center, South 
Kelso). 

• Action:  Prepare strategy to encourage economic growth, remove barriers, and foster 
and inviting environment for entrepreneurs to open businesses in Kelso. 
 

 
Goal:  Consistent, effective delivery of Kelso city services that meets or exceeds standards of 
professionalism and accountability. 
 

• Action:  Present 5-6 year Financial Forecast and draft corresponding department 
business plans. 

• Action:  Completion of City Master Fee Schedule with updated fees established to 
recover the cost of the services provided. 

• Action:  Negotiate franchise agreements with Public Utility District and Comcast Cable. 



2 
 

 
Goal:  Provide proactive and visionary regional leadership. 
 

• Action:  Continue regional outreach and participation to enhance partnership 
opportunities with public and private sector organizations. 

• Action:  Review city charter and evaluate potential amendments to be brought forward 
for voter consideration. 

• Action:  Facilitate expanded partnership with the SW Regional Airport in the provision of 
operational and administrative support. 

 
Auxiliary task list 

• Evaluate legislative advocacy service options to assist in securing state and federal 
resources for critical infrastructure and community improvements. 

• Evaluate criteria for establishing local improvement districts and grant funding to 
address curb, sidewalk, and drainage infrastructure. 

• Evaluate zoning regulations to allow food trucks in designated commercial areas. 
• Addressing blight and encouraging revitalization in West Kelso north of Cowlitz Way. 
• Implement city way-finding project to direct residents and tourists to city attractions 

and assets.  (Discussed as possible Big Idea funding project) 
• Focus planning efforts on facilitating renewal of the Three Rivers Mall property. 
• Enhance customer service delivery through technology investments in utility billing, 

business licensing, permitting, and public information. 
• Evaluate feasibility of public safety service enhancements (Traffic unit; community 

policing; targeted enforcement). 



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 

 
SUBJECT TITLE:   
1st Reading ORDINANCE -- ENERGY 
TRANSMISSION FACILITIES FRANCHISE 
RENEWAL 
 
 
  
 
 
 
PRESENTED BY:  
 
Steve Taylor 

 
Agenda Item:    
 
Dept. of Origin: City Manager   
 
For Agenda of: June 3, 2014 
 
Originator:   Steve Taylor    
 
 
 
City Attorney:     Janean Parker  
 
City Manager:       Steve Taylor   
 

 
Agenda Item Attachments:    
Ordinance Granting Franchise for Energy Transmission Facilities to Weyerhaeuser, North Pacific Paper                                       
Corporation (NORPAC) and Solvay Chemicals, Inc. 
Ordinance No. 3120 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
In 1975, the City granted a franchise to the Columbia and Cowlitz Railway Company, a subsidiary of 
Weyerhaeuser Co., to build and maintain a railway through the northwest corner West Kelso between Fisher’s 
Lane and Clark Street.  The franchise agreement was amended in 1989 to allow the construction and 
maintenance of energy transmission facilities, namely, a natural gas pipeline along that same stretch.  The 
length of the franchise was twenty years.  Subsequently, the railway was sold to Patriot Rail, but ownership of 
the natural gas pipeline was retained jointly by Weyerhaeuser, NORPAC, and Solvay Chemicals.  The franchise 
agreement expired in 2009, and the parties have requested twenty-year renewals separately for the railway 
and energy transmission components.  
 
The attached ordinance grants a twenty-year franchise to Weyerhaeuser, NORPAC, and Solvay Chemicals for 
the construction, maintenance and operation of energy transmission facilities along the railway as it intersects 
and crosses city right-of-way.  A separate franchise ordinance with Patriot Rail’s subsidiary, Columbia and 
Cowlitz, LLC is forthcoming for Council consideration. 
 
OPTIONS: 
1) Move to adopt the ordinance granting a franchise to Weyerhaeuser, NORPAC, and Solvay Chemicals for the 
construction, maintenance and operation of energy transmission facilities in city right-of-way; 
2)  Do not approve the franchise ordinance; 
3)  Take no action and defer consideration to a subsequent regular meeting. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
Move to adopt the ordinance on first reading granting the franchise. 



ORDINANCE NO. __________ 
 
AN ORDINANCE GRANTING TO WEYERHAEUSER NR COMPANY, NORTH PACIFIC PAPER 
CORPORATION AND SOLVAY CHEMICALS, INC., THEIR SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, FOR 
A PERIOD OF TWENTY (20) YEARS, THE RIGHT AND FRANCHISE TO CONSTRUCT, 
MAINTAIN, AND OPERATE ENERGY TRANSMISSION FACILITIES WITHIN CERTAIN 
DESCRIBED LIMITS OF THE CITY OF KELSO. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Kelso adopted Ordinance No. 2614 in 1975 granting the Columbia and 
Cowlitz Railway Company the right and franchise to construct, maintain, and operate a railway within 
the City of Kelso, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City adopted Ordinance No. 3120 in 1989 granting a modification to said 
franchise for a period of twenty (20) years that authorized the construction, operation and maintenance 
of utilities and energy transmission facilities, including a natural gas pipeline, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the term of said franchise as modified expired in 2009, and 
 
 WHEREAS, ownership of the railway, utilities and energy transmission facilities was 
subsequently transferred to different entities, and specifically, ownership of the energy transmission 
facilities has passed jointly to Weyerhaeuser NR Company, North Pacific Paper Corporation, and 
Solvay Chemicals, Inc., and 
 
 WHEREAS, Weyerhaeuser NR Company, North Pacific Paper Corporation, and Solvay 
Chemicals, Inc., have requested a new agreement for a period of twenty (20) years granting the right and 
franchise to construct, maintain, and operate energy transmission facilities within the City of Kelso. 
  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KELSO, WASHINGTON DO 
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:  
 
Section 1.  That the terms and provisions of Ordinance No. 3120 related to the granting of the right and 
franchise to construct, maintain, and operate energy transmission facilities are hereby superceded and 
replaced by the terms and provision set forth in this ordinance. 
 
Section 2.  That there be, and is hereby granted Weyerhaeuser NR Company, a Washington 
corporation, North Pacific Paper Corporation, a Delaware corporation, and Solvay Chemicals, Inc., a 
Delaware corporation,  (hereafter "Grantees"), and to their successors and assigns and to any assignee 
of the energy transmission rights as permitted in this ordinance, the right, privilege, franchise and 
authority, for and during the period of twenty (20) years from the effective date of this ordinance and 
subject to all the conditions and provisions hereof, to construct, maintain, and operate utilities and 
energy transmission facilities, in streets or public thoroughfares of the City of Kelso (hereafter "City"), 
whose boundaries, in whole or in part, may now or hereafter be included within the city limits, the 
location of such facilities described as follows: 
 

BEGINNING at a point on the west boundary line of the City of Kelso, approximately one 
hundred twenty-five feet south of the south line of Clark Street in said City of Kelso and 
running thence in a northeasterly direction, crossing Clark Street and Fisher’s Lane, to a point 
on the north boundary line of said City of Kelso approximately six hundred fifty feet east of the 
intersection of the north and west boundary lines of said City of Kelso.  



  
Section 3.  Grantees shall comply with all applicable City standards for road surface smoothness. That 
whenever said Grantees, in the exercise of the rights granted by this ordinance, or any of them, shall 
disturb or obstruct the surface and/or subsurface of any street or other public thoroughfare or any public 
or quasi-public utility lines, poles, mains or similar improvements, the Grantees shall, as soon as is 
reasonably practicable, restore the same to as good condition as existed before such disturbance. If such 
repairs or restoration is not completed within 90 days, the City shall have the right to cause such repairs 
or restoration to be made and Grantees hereby agree to pay to the City all costs for such repair or 
restoration upon receiving written documentation and notification from the City. The City may at any 
time order, do or have done any and all work necessary to restore to a safe condition any such street or 
other public thoroughfare or any such utility improvements where, in the sole judgment of the City 
Manager or Director of Public Works of the City, the Grantees have created a condition imminently 
dangerous to life or property and Grantees shall, upon demand of the City, pay to the City all costs for 
such repair or restoration upon receipt of written notification and documentation of such costs.  
 
Section 4.  The construction, maintenance and operation of any such energy transmission lines under 
the franchise granted by this ordinance shall not preclude the City, its accredited agents or its contractors 
from blasting, tunneling, grading or doing other necessary work for the maintenance and/or installation 
of public utilities (including those installed by quasi-public bodies) and/or the construction, repair and 
maintenance of streets or other public thoroughfares contiguous to Grantees’ energy transmission 
facilities, provided the City shall give Grantees not less than twenty-four (24) hours prior notice, in 
writing, of said blasting, excavating or other similar work so that Grantees may protect their energy 
transmission lines and other property.  
 
Section 5.  The Grantees accept this franchise and all rights conferred hereunder for the use and 
occupation of any portion of the City's streets or other thoroughfares, at Grantee's own risk, and agree to 
assume responsibility for any damage occasioned to Grantees, by the City in the maintenance and/or 
construction work performed by the City, whether by its own employees or by public contract, upon the 
streets and/or thoroughfares within the above described property, which damage would not have 
occurred but for the presence on said streets or other thoroughfares of the Grantees’ energy transmission 
facilities. These obligations shall be deemed to include every employee, nominee or independent 
contractor of the Grantees performing work within said streets or other thoroughfares under contract, 
direction, request or authority of the Grantees under this franchise, and the Grantees, their agents, 
employees or independent contractors, severally, shall be responsible to the City for any injury or 
damage to City property or the expense incurred or suffered by the City in correcting defects in work 
performed on City-owned property, replacing or repairing City streets, other thoroughfares or other 
City-owned improvements damaged by the acts or negligence of such employees, agents or independent 
contractors of Grantees.  
 
Section 6.  If (a) the Grantees shall willfully violate or fail to comply with any of the provisions of the 
franchise hereby granted or through willful or unreasonable neglect fail to heed or comply with any 
notice given the Grantees under the provisions hereof, and (b) the Grantees fail to cure such violation or 
come into compliance with such provision within twenty (20) days of receipt of written notice from the 
City, then (c) the Grantees shall forfeit all rights conferred hereunder and such franchise may be revoked 
or annulled by the City Council of said City upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to the Grantees.  
 
Section 7.  All the provisions, conditions, regulations and requirements herein contained shall be 
binding upon the successors, assigns and independent contractors of the Grantees, and all privileges of 
the Grantees shall inure to their successors, assigns and such contractors equally as if they were 
specifically mentioned wherever the Grantees are mentioned.  



 
Section 8.  All provisions or conditions herein enumerated shall be deemed to be automatically 
amended to comply with and conform to any future amendment or other change in any state law of 
Washington affecting such enumerated provision or condition.  
 
Section 9.  Unless the said Grantees shall within thirty (30) days after the passage of this ordinance file 
with the Clerk of the City their written acceptance of this franchise herein granted, subject to the 
conditions herein set forth, this ordinance shall become void.  
 
Section 10.  By such acceptance, Grantees shall be deemed to covenant to indemnify and save harmless 
the City from all claims, actions or damages of every kind and description which may accrue to or be 
suffered by any person or persons, corporation or property by reasons of any faulty construction, 
defective material or equipment operation resulting from the improper construction, maintenance, repair 
or operation of Grantees’ energy transmission facilities or by reason of the negligent, improper or faulty 
manner of safeguarding any construction and/or repair area by Grantees and in case any suit or action is 
brought against the City for damages arising out of or by reason of any of the above mentioned causes, 
the Grantees will, upon notice of the commencement of such action, defend the same at their sole cost 
and expense and in case judgment shall be rendered against the City in such suit or action, Grantees will 
fully satisfy said judgment within ninety (90) days after said suit or action shall have been finally 
determined, if determined adversely to the City.  
 
Section 11.  If any provision of this ordinance or application thereof to any person or circumstance is 
held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of this ordinance which can 
be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this 
ordinance are declared to be severable.  
 
Section 12.  In addition to its other obligations set forth above, Grantees shall obtain a City of Kelso 
business license and shall timely pay all fees and taxes applicable to its operations in the City including 
the applicable Business and Occupation tax.   
 
Section 13. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after five (5) days from the date of 
its passage and publication.  
 
Section 14.  All notices, requests, demands, and other communications required by this Ordinance will 
be in writing and be delivered to the parties at the following addresses or such other address that a party 
may designate by written notice to the other parties from time to time: 

City of Kelso 
Attn:  City Manager’s Office 
203 S. Pacific, Ste. 217 
P.O. Box 819 
Kelso, WA  98626 
 
Weyerhaeuser NR Company 
Attn:  Office of General Counsel 
PO Box 9777, MS CH5J 
Federal Way, WA 98003 
 
 



North Pacific Paper Corporation 
Attn:  President 
PO Box 9777 
Federal Way, WA 98003 
 
Solvay Chemicals, Inc. 
Attn: Todd Wiseman, Energy Sourcing Manager – North America 
3500 Industrial Way 
Longview, WA 98632 

 
All notices will be deemed complete upon personal service, delivery by a recognized overnight courier 
at the notice address, or another address as a party may identify in writing. 

 

ADOPTED by the City Council and SIGNED by the Mayor this ____ day of __________________, 
2014. 

 

 

            ____________________________________ 

ATTEST/AUTHENTICATION:    MAYOR 

 

________________________________ 

CITY CLERK 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

________________________________ 

CITY ATTORNEY 

PUBLISHED:_____________________ 

 



 











AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE:  A RESOLUTION OF THE 
CITY OF KELSO ADOPTING RULES OF 
PROCEDURE GOVERNING THE CONDUCT OF 
HEARINGS BEFORE THE CITY’S HEARING 
EXAMINER 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTED BY:  
 
Steve Taylor 

 
Agenda Item:    
 
Dept. of Origin: City Manager   
 
For Agenda of: June 3, 2014_____________  
 
Originator: Steve Taylor    
 
 
 
City Attorney:     Janean Parker  
 
City Manager:       Steve Taylor   
 

 

Agenda Item Attachments:    
Proposed Resolution 
 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
The City established a hearing examiner system in 2009 through the adoption of Ordinance No. 3705.  
The system provides a prompt opportunity for a hearing and decision on land use applications or 
appeals of administrative land use decisions, and such other matters as may be assigned to the 
hearing examiner.  The attached resolution would adopt formal rules that govern the hearing 
process.  This covers general rules that apply to all hearings, rules for hearings on permit 
applications, and those pertaining to hearings on appeals.  This is a housekeeping item that provides 
better guidance to the participants in the hearings process and transparency for the general public.  
 
 
OPTIONS: 

1. Move to approve the resolution adopting rules of procedure for hearings that come before the 
City’s hearing examiner. 

2. Do not approve the resolution. 
3. Take no action and bring back for consideration at a future meeting. 

 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
Move to approve the resolution approving rules of procedure for hearings that come before the City’s 
hearing examiner. 



RESOLUTION NO.  __________ 
 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF KELSO, WASHINGTON, 
ADOPTING RULES OF PROCEDURE GOVERNING THE CONDUCT OF 
HEARINGS BEFORE THE CITY’S HEARING EXAMINER. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Kelso adopted Ordinance No. 3705 in 2009 which established the 
authority and process for a hearing examiner system to provide prompt opportunity for a hearing and 
decision on land use applications or appeals of administrative land use decisions, and such other matters 
as may be assigned to the hearing examiner; and 

 
WHEREAS, adopting general rules of procedure consistent with the hearing examiner system 

established in the Kelso Municipal Code governing the conduct of hearings before the hearing examiner 
is desirable to enhance transparency of the hearing examiner system for participants and the general 
public. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KELSO DO HEREBY 
RESOLVE: 

   SECTION 1.  Hearing Examiner Rules of Procedure Adopted.  Rules of procedure governing the 
conduct of hearings before the City’s hearing examiner as attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated 
by reference therein are hereby adopted. 

SECTION 2.  This resolution shall be effective immediately upon its adoption.   
 

ADOPTED by the City Council and SIGNED by the Mayor this _____ day of 
______________________, 2014. 

      ____________________________________ 

      MAYOR 

ATTEST/AUTHENTICATION: 

 

_____________________________ 

CITY CLERK 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

____________________________ 

CITY ATTORNEY 



Exhibit A 

 
 CITY OF KELSO HEARING EXAMINER RULES  

 
Introduction  
These Hearing Examiner Rules of Procedure govern the conduct of hearings held by the 
Hearing Examiner. The Rules are divided into three chapters: rules that apply to all matters 
[Chapter I]; rules for hearings on permit applications [Chapter II]; and, rules for hearings on 
appeals of administrative decisions [Chapter III].   
 
The Kelso Municipal Code, Chapters 18B.08 and 09, establish the Hearing Examiner review 
and appeal procedures. 
 
 
Table of Contents  
Chapter I General Rules  

Section 1: Apply to all hearings  
Section 2: Nature of Proceedings  
Section 3: Definitions  
Section 4: Party Representative Required  
Section 5: Presiding Officer    
Section 6: Conflicts  

 
Chapter II: Hearings on Permit Applications  

Section 1: Apply to hearings held prior to decision  
Section 2: Rights of Parties  
Section 3: Responsibilities of Parties  
Section 4: Hearing procedures    
Section 5: Withdrawal of Application  
Section 6: Recommendation/Decision 

 
Chapter III: Hearings on Appeals  

Section 1: Apply to hearings held on appeal of administrative decision  
Section 2: Parties' Rights and Responsibilities  
Section 3: Filing  
Section 4: Dismissal  
Section 5: Withdrawal of Appeal  
Section 6: Default  
Section 7: Notice of Hearing  
Section 8: Hearing Format  
Section 9: Record of Hearing  
Section 10: Examiner's Decision  
  
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 2 

 
RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR  

PROCEEDINGS BEFORE THE HEARING EXAMINER  
 

CHAPTER I: GENERAL  
 
 

SECTION 1: APPLICATION  
 
This Chapter applies to all hearings that are required by the City Code to be held before the 
Hearing Examiner.  
 

SECTION 2: NATURE OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

2.1 Expeditious Proceedings  
To the extent practicable and consistent with requirements of law, all hearings shall be 
conducted expeditiously. In the conduct of such proceedings the Hearing Examiner, City staff, 
and all parties, or their agents, shall make every effort at each stage of a proceeding to avoid 
delay.  
 
2.2 Frequency  
Hearings before the Examiner shall be scheduled on an as-needed basis. Each matter shall be 
noted to commence at a particular time.  
 
2.3 Format  
The format for a hearing will be of an informal nature yet designed in such a way that the 
evidence and facts relevant to a particular proceeding will be easily ascertainable by a reviewing 
body. The format will allow development of a record by parties. 
 
2.4 Site Inspection  
When deemed necessary by the Hearing Examiner, the Examiner may inspect the site prior or 
subsequent to the hearing.  
 
2.5 Record of Hearing  
a.  Hearings shall be electronically recorded and such recordings shall be a part of the official 

case record. Copies of the electronic recording of a particular proceeding shall be made 
available to the public five business days after a request. The reasonable cost of such 
copying shall be paid by the requester. No minutes of the hearing will be kept.  

 
b.  Copies of any written materials in the record may be obtained by any person upon payment 

of the cost of reproducing the material.  
 
2.6 Computation of Time  
Computation of any period of time prescribed or allowed by these rules shall begin with the first 
day following that on which the act or event initiating the period of time occurred. When the last 
day of the period so computed is a Saturday, Sunday or a city, national or state holiday, the 
period shall run until the end of the next following business day. 
 
 
 



 3 

 
SECTION 3: DEFINITIONS  

 
"Appellant" means a person, organization, association or other similar group who files a 
complete and timely appeal of a decision.  
 
"Applicant" means a person who is the owner of the subject property or the authorized 
representative of the owner of the subject property, and who has applied for a land use permit 
or approval.  

 
"Comprehensive plan" means the comprehensive plan that has been adopted by the city.  

 
"City" means City of Kelso, Washington.  

 
"Examiner" means the hearing examiner of the City of Kelso. 
 
"Hearing" means the proceeding at which testimony or documents are presented as evidence 
to the examiner or council.  
 
“Intervener” means a third party who desires to join as a third party to a matter in order to 
protect their interests 
 
"KMC" means City of Kelso Municipal Code.  
 
“Notice of decision” means a written document that communicates a decision of the 
administrator, examiner or council.  

 
"Party of interest" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, or public or 
private organization that may be affected by proceedings before the examiner. The term 
includes a “party of record” as defined herein.  

 
 “Party of record” means:  
a.  For an open record hearing on a permit application:  

1.  The applicant;   
2.  The city; and   
3.  A person who testifies at the hearing or who submits written testimony for consideration 

at the hearing.  
 
b.  For an open record appeal of an administrative decision:  

1.  The applicant;   
2.  The appellant;   
3.  The city;   
4.  Any interveners allowed by the hearing examiner to join as a party.  

 
"Record" means the oral testimony and written exhibits submitted at the hearing. The recording 
of the proceeding shall be included as part of the record. 
 
 
 
 
 



 4 

 
SECTION 4: PARTIES’ REPRESENTATIVE REQUIRED  

 
When a party consists of more than one individual, or is a group, organization, corporation, or 
other entity, the party shall designate an individual to be its representative and inform the 
Examiner of the name, address and telephone number of that designated representative. The 
rights of such party shall be exercised by the person designated as the party representative. 
Notice or other communication to the party representative is considered to be notice or 
communication to the party except as otherwise provided in these rules. 
 
 

SECTION 5: PRESIDING OFFICER  
 

The Hearing Examiner shall preside over the hearing. The Hearing Examiner shall have all of 
the authority and duties granted to the Examiner in state statutes, the City code, and other City 
ordinances. Included in the duties of the Examiner are the following: to conduct fair and 
impartial hearings; to take all necessary action to avoid delay in the disposition of proceedings; 
and, to maintain order. The Examiner has all powers necessary to that end, including the 
following:  

a.  To administer oaths and affirmations;  
b.  To rule upon offers of proof and receive evidence;   
c.  To regulate the course of the hearings and the conduct of the parties and their agents;  
d.  To question any party at the hearing,  
e.  To hold conferences for settlement, simplification of the issues, or any other proper purpose;  
f.  To require briefs on legal issues;  
g.  To consider and rule upon all procedural and other motions appropriate to the proceedings; 

and  
h.  To make and file recommendations or decisions. 
 
 

SECTION 6: CONFLICTS  
 
These rules of procedure are adopted to supplement the requirements of the City code. In the 
event that there are any conflicts between these rules and the provisions of the City code, the 
provisions of the City code shall prevail. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 5 

 
CHAPTER II: OPEN RECORD HEARINGS ON PERMIT APPLICATIONS  

 
SECTION 1: APPLICATION  

 
This Chapter applies to open record hearings on land use applications that are required by the 
City Code to be held before the Hearing Examiner. 
 

SECTION 2: RIGHTS OF PARTIES  
 
2.1 Rights of City  
The City staff shall have the right to present evidence and testimony; propose questions to 
witnesses, present objections, and arguments and recommendations.  
 
2.2 Rights of Applicant  
Every Applicant shall have the right to notice of the hearing, present evidence and testimony; 
propose questions to witnesses, present objections, and arguments and recommendations.   
 
2.3 Rights of Parties of Record  
All Parties of Record have the right to present evidence and testimony; propose questions to 
witnesses, present objections, and arguments and recommendations.  
 
2.4 Presence of Legal Counsel at Hearings or Meetings 
a.  Although representation by legal counsel is not required, all parties participating in the 

hearings may be represented at any stage of the proceeding by legal counsel of their 
choice.  

 
b.  At the request of the City staff or the Examiner, a representative of the City Attorney’s Office 

may be present at any stage of the proceedings to advise on matters of law and procedure.  
 
2.5 Limitations 
Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraphs 2.1, 2.2, and 2.3, the Examiner may impose 
reasonable limitations on the number of witnesses heard, and on the nature and length of their 
testimony. Questioning of witnesses is permitted as necessary for a full disclosure of the facts, 
but said questions for witnesses shall be directed to the Examiner. The Examiner shall control 
the amount and style of said questioning. 
 
 

SECTION 3: RESPONSIBILITIES OF PARTIES  
 
3.1 Responsibilities of City Staff  
The City staff shall provide a staff report consistent with the City code. The staff report shall be 
available for review and copying at least seven days prior to the hearing. The City staff shall 
also present materials at the hearings; provide the Examiner with documentation relevant to the 
proceedings, and be courteous to all persons participating in the proceedings.  
 
3.2 Responsibilities of Applicant  
The Applicant shall, seven days prior to the hearing: provide the Examiner with written material 
that supports the application; be prepared for questions by the Examiner; and, be courteous to 
all persons participating in the proceedings.  
 



 6 

 
3.3 Responsibilities of Other Parties of Interest  
All persons who attend a hearing shall conduct themselves with civility and deal courteously 
with all involved in the proceedings. Failure to do so may result in the Examiner removing the 
person from the hearing.  
 
3.4 Material to Be Submitted 
All briefs and other legal memoranda upon which a Party of Record knows the party will be 
presenting at the hearing must be submitted to the Examiner and all Parties of Record at least 
seven days in advance of the scheduled hearing date. The above mentioned documents shall 
be available to the public at least seven days in advance of the scheduled hearing date. This 
paragraph does not prohibit the Examiner from allowing a party to submit materials at a later 
date. 
 
 

SECTION 4: CONDUCT OF HEARINGS  
 
4.1 Affidavit of Notice  
An affidavit attesting to the notice given of a hearing (including dates and places of publication 
and list of those mailed to) shall be part of each official case record.  
 
4.2 Oath or Affirmation  
All testimony before the Examiner shall be given under oath or affirmation to tell the truth. 
The Examiner shall administer the oath or affirmation.  
 
4.3 Content of the Record  
The record of a hearing conducted by the Examiner shall include, but not be limited to, the 
following materials:  
a.  The application;  
b.  The Departmental staff reports;  
c.  All evidence received which shall include oral testimony given at the hearing, and all 

exhibits and other materials admitted as evidence,   
d.  A statement of all matters officially noticed;  
e.  A decision or a recommended decision containing the findings and conclusions of the 

Examiner;  
f.  Official recordings made on electronic equipment; and   
g.  An environmental determination made pursuant to the State Environmental Policy Act of 

1971 (SEPA) (if applicable). 
 
4.4 Development of Record at the Hearing  
A hearing will usually include, but not be limited to, the following elements: a brief introductory 
statement by the Examiner regarding the procedures before the Examiner; an introductory 
statement by the City staff that may include submission of the staff report with exhibits, 
reference to visual aids and a summary of the staff recommendation, testimony and submission 
of other evidence by the Applicant, testimony of Parties of Interest; opportunity for questions 
and rebuttal; and, opportunity for questions by the Examiner. 
 
4.5 Content and Form of Staff Reports  
The staff report on a land use application shall include the following:  



 7 

a.  Names and addresses of the owner(s) and Applicant(s) of the subject property and his/her 
property interest in the property that is the subject of the hearing.  

b.  A brief summary of the requested action and a statement as to which code regulations apply 
to the application   

c.  A common description of the subject property and a legal description of the subject property. 
If necessary due to length, the legal description may be included as an appendix.  

d.  A summary of the Comprehensive Plan designation and zoning designation of the subject 
property; the current uses on the subject property and the adjoining properties; 
topographical information; geological and soils information; information on the vegetation on 
the property, information on available services and utilities, and other site characteristics.  

e.  The current and proposed access to the subject property, if applicable to the application.    
f.  An analysis of the proposed project as to its consistency with the relevant criteria for review 

of the application.  
g.  A summary of any other requested land use permits in the area.   
h.  A summary of recommendations made by any agencies consulted on the project, and a list 

of any reports submitted by the agencies.  
i  A brief summary of issues raised in public comment, with copies of written comments 

attached. 
j.  Maps as specified in the submittal requirements contained in the zoning chapter(s) relevant 

to the specific development application.  
k.  The result of the determination pursuant to the State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA).  
l.  Staff's recommendations as to the consistency of the application with the relevant criteria 

and any necessary conditions that should be applied to any approval of the application.  
 
4.6 Continuances of Hearings  
a.  If, in the opinion of the Hearing Examiner, more information is necessary in order to make a 

recommendation or decision, or the Examiner is unable to hear all of the public comments 
on the matter, the Examiner may continue the hearing to a specified date.  

 
b.  Any Party of Record may request continuance of a hearing. The request, if made prior to the 

hearing, must be in writing and state reasonable grounds for a continuance. The Examiner 
shall have discretion to grant or deny the request for continuance.  

 
c.  If the hearing is continued prior to the commencement of the hearing, the new hearing time 

and place shall be posted on the door of the hearing facility on the original hearing date. If 
the hearing is continued to a specific time and place during the hearing, the new hearing 
time and place shall be posted on the City’s website. 

 
4.7 Evidence  
a.  Burden of proof. In each proceeding for review of an application, the Applicant shall have 

the burden of proof to show compliance with applicable laws and regulations of Washington 
State and City of Kelso.  

 
b.  Admissibility. The hearing generally will not be conducted according to strict legal rules 

relating to evidence and procedure. Any relevant evidence shall be admitted if it is the type 
that possesses value commonly accepted by reasonably prudent persons in the conduct of 
their affairs. The Examiner shall have discretion on the admissibility of all evidence.  

 
c.  Copies. Documentary evidence may be received in the form of copies if the original is not 

readily available. Upon request, parties shall be given opportunity to compare the copy with 



 8 

the original. The party offering the document into evidence shall provide an extra copy of the 
document to the Examiner as a working copy.  

 
d.  Judicial notice. The Examiner may take judicial notice of generally accepted facts. The 

Examiner shall not take judicial notice of any disputed adjudicative facts that are at the 
center of the proceeding.  

 
e.  The Examiner may request that a document be filed after the close of public testimony. Only 

those documents referred to at the hearing may be submitted after the hearing and only 
those specifically requested by the Examiner. If a document is submitted after the close of 
public testimony, the Examiner may allow other Parties of Record a reasonable opportunity 
to comment on the document.  

 
f.  After the public hearing is closed, additional evidence may only be submitted upon a motion 

for reconsideration based on new evidence not reasonably available at the time of the 
hearing. If additional evidence is submitted with a motion for reconsideration, the additional 
evidence will be considered only upon a showing of significant relevance and good cause 
for delay in its submission. All Parties of Record will be given notice of the consideration of 
such evidence and granted an opportunity to review such evidence and file rebuttal 
arguments.  

 
g.  All parties will be allowed opportunity to make a record of evidence admitted or denied 

during the course of the hearing. This record shall include offers of proof.  
 
 

SECTION 5: WITHDRAWAL OF APPLICATION  
 
If the Applicant requests that the application be withdrawn at any time prior to the issuance of a 
decision by the Hearing Examiner, the application shall be withdrawn. The Applicant shall 
remain responsible for the payment of fees and costs already incurred by the City with respect 
to the application. 
 
 

SECTION 6: RECOMMENDATIONS/DECISIONS  
 
6.1 Written Recommendations  
For applications heard by the Examiner that require Council approval, a written report of 
findings, conclusions and recommendations shall be forwarded to the Council and the Parties of 
Record, within the time allowed by law or agreed to by the Applicant and City. The findings, 
conclusions and recommendations shall indicate how the recommendation meets the relevant 
goals, policies, plans and requirements of the City code and other policies and objectives of the 
City including the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
6.2 Written Decisions  
For all applications where the Examiner has final approval authority, a written report of findings, 
conclusions and decision shall be forwarded to all Parties of Record, within the time allowed by 
law or agreed to by the Applicant and the City. The findings, conclusions and decision shall 
indicate how the decision meets the relevant goals, policies, plans and requirements of the City 
code and other policies and objectives of the City, including the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
6.3 Content of Recommendation or Decision  



 9 

The Examiner’s recommendation or decision shall include:  
a.  Summary of the Proceedings. This shall include a list of all exhibits received and all persons 

who testified. A summary of testimony should be given if relied upon in a Finding.  
b.  Findings. These shall be statements of verifiable fact relevant to the criteria for review of the 

application. The findings shall be based exclusively on the evidence presented in the 
hearing and those matters officially noticed. A finding shall be made on each contested 
issue of fact. Findings shall reference a specific exhibit or testimony in support of the finding. 
On contested issues of fact, findings shall clearly summarize all exhibits or testimony 
presented and shall reference the specific exhibit or testimony used to support the finding.  

 
c.  Conclusions. Each conclusion shall be supported by a reference to a Finding of Fact. The 

conclusions shall reference specific provisions of the law and regulations when relevant to 
the decision.   

 
d.  Decision or Recommendation. A decision or recommendation on an application may be to 

approve, deny or approve with conditions. Every recommendation or decision shall be 
based upon a consideration of the whole record and supported by substantial evidence.  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 10 

 
 
 

CHAPTER III: OPEN RECORD APPEAL HEARING OF ADMINSTRATIVE 
DECISIONS  

 
 

SECTION 1: APPLICATION  
 
This chapter applies to open record appeals of administrative decisions that approve, deny, or 
condition a land use permit application. An open record appeal hearing is one where evidence is 
submitted for the record for the first time. 
 
 

SECTION 2: PARTIES RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES  
 
2.1 Although Appellants and Applicants have the right to be represented by an attorney, 

representation by an attorney is not required.  
 
2.2 All parties and others participating in and observing hearings shall conduct themselves with 

civility and deal courteously with all persons involved in the proceedings. 
 

 
SECTION 3: FILING  

 
3.1 Compliance with Rules  
All appeals must comply with the requirements established in the applicable City of Kelso 
ordinance(s) under which the appeal is filed.  
 
3.2 Timeliness  
To be considered timely filed, an appeal must be received by the City no later than 5pm on the 
last day of the appeal period.  
 
3.3 Fee  
Any filing fee as required by the City shall accompany an appeal.  
 
  

SECTION 4: DISMISSAL  
 
4.1 An appeal may be dismissed without a hearing if the Hearing Examiner determines that it 

fails to state a claim for which the Examiner has jurisdiction to grant relief, or it is without 
merit on its face, frivolous, or brought merely to secure delay.  

 
4.2 Any Party of Record may request dismissal of all or part of an appeal at any time with notice 

to all parties. The Examiner may make a ruling on a motion to dismiss based upon written 
arguments or may call for oral arguments.  

 
4.3 When decision or action being appealed is withdrawn by the issuing Department, the appeal 

becomes moot and shall be dismissed.  
 



 11 

 
SECTION 5: WITHDRAWAL  

 
5.1  An appeal may be withdrawn only by the Appellant.  
5.2 Where an appeal is made by several persons, a group, organization, corporation, or other 

entity, withdrawal shall be made by the person who was designated as the party 
representative.  

 
5.3 An Appellant's request to withdraw the appeal shall be granted as a matter of right and the 

appeal dismissed.  
 
 

SECTION 6: DEFAULT  
 
6.1 The Examiner may dismiss an appeal by an order of default where the Appellant, without 

good cause, fails to appear or is unprepared to proceed at a scheduled and properly noticed 
hearing. 

 
 

SECTION 7: NOTICE OF HEARING  
 
7.1 Contents  
The notice of hearing given to Applicant and Appellant shall be given in accordance with the 
City code.  
 
7.2 Time  
Notice of the hearing shall be given within the time required by applicable ordinance(s).   
 
7.3 Responsibility  
The city staff shall be responsible for serving notice of hearing for appeals. 
 
7.4 Record of Notice  
A copy of the notice of hearing shall be made part of each official case record. 
 
 

SECTION 8: HEARING FORMAT  
 
8.1 Appeal hearings, although generally informal in nature, shall have a structured format and 

shall be conducted in a manner deemed by the Examiner to make the relevant evidence 
most readily and efficiently available to the Examiner and to provide the parties a fair 
opportunity for hearing.  

 
8.2 The order of an appeal hearing will generally be as follows:  

a.  Examiner's introductory statement;  
b.  Background presentation by City staff;  
c.  Appellant's presentation;  
d.  City staff’s presentation;  
e.  Applicant’s presentation;  
f.  Rebuttal;  
g.  Closing argument of parties.  

 



 12 

8.3 Notwithstanding the above provisions, the order of hearing may be modified or a different 
order established as the Examiner deems necessary for a clear and fair presentation.  

 
8.4 The order of presentation at hearing shall not alter or shift any burden(s) or presumption(s) 

established by applicable law(s). 
 
 

SECTION 10: RECORD  
 
9.1 The record of an appeal shall include:  

a.  The administrative decision or action being appealed;   
b.  Appeal statement;   
c. Record of the proceedings of the decision maker; 
d.  Tape recording of appeal hearing;  
e.  Written arguments submitted by parties.  
f.  The Departmental staff reports;   
g.  All evidence received which shall include a transcript oral testimony given at the hearing, 

all exhibits and other materials admitted as evidence;   
h.  A statement of all matters officially noticed;  
i.  A decision or a recommended decision containing the findings and conclusions of the 

Examiner; and   
j.  An environmental determination made pursuant to the State Environmental Policy Act of 

1971 (SEPA) (if applicable). 
 

9.2 The Examiner’s administrative file on an appeal case may include other information or 
materials which are not part of the evidentiary record. 

 
 

SECTION 11: EXAMINER’S DECISION  
 
10.1 A decision of the Examiner on an appeal shall include, but not be limited to, a statement 

regarding the following:  
a.  Background. The nature and background of the proceeding, basis for the appeal, 

including identification of the party representatives participating in the hearing and other 
similar information.  

 
b.  Findings. The individual facts that the Examiner finds relevant, credible, and requisite to 

the decision, based on the record of proceedings.  
 

c.  Conclusions. Legal conclusions based upon specific provisions of law and the findings of 
fact.  
 

d.  Decision. The Examiner’s decision to affirm, modify, reverse, or remand the appeal 
based upon a consideration of the whole record and supported by substantial evidence 
in the record, including any conditions imposed as part of the decision.   

 
e.  Right to Appeal. A statement of the right of a person with standing to appeal the 

decision. 
 

 
  



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: A resolution to amend AGENDA ITEM #

Resolution 13-1088 Authorizing FOR AGENDA OF: 6/3/2014

Investment of Kelso Monies in the ORIGINATING DEPT: Finance

Local Government Investment Pool. DATE SUBMITTED: 5/28/2014

COST OF ITEM:

AMT. BUDGETED

CITY ATTY. APPROVAL

SUBMITTED BY: Brian Butterfield, CITY MGR. APPROVAL

Finance Director

AGENDA ITEM PAPERWORK:

Resolution

LGIP Prospectus

LGIP Transaction Authorization Form

LGIP Investment Policy

SUMMARY STATEMENT

In an effort to provide more clarity with respect to how the Local Government Investment Pool 
operates, and as a result of the recently amended WACs, the State Treasurer's Office has created
a prospectus and has distributed it to all investors in the LGIP.

As a result of the release of this prospectus, each local government investing in the LGIP is required to
adopt an updated Resolution that acknowledges that the local government is responsible for overseeing 
or making investment decisions and has read and understands the prospectus. 



RESOLUTION NO.  __________ 
 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF KELSO, WASHINGTON, AMENDING 
RESOLUTION NO. 13-1088 AUTHORIZING INVESTMENT OF KELSO MONIES IN THE 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT INVESTMENT POOL 
 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 294, Laws of 1986, the Legislature created a trust fund to be 

known as the public funds investment account (commonly referred to as the Local Government 

Investment Pool (LGIP) for the contribution and withdrawal of money by an authorized governmental 

entity for purposes of investment by the Office of the State Treasurer; and 

WHEREAS, from time to time it may be advantageous to the authorized governmental entity, 

the City of Kelso, the “governmental entity”, to contribute funds available for investment in the LGIP; 

and  

WHEREAS, the investment strategy for the LGIP is set forth in its policies and procedures; and 

WHEREAS, any contributions or withdrawals to or from the LGIP made on behalf of the City of 

Kelso shall be first duly authorized by the City Council, the “governing body” or any designee of the City 

Council pursuant to this resolution or a subsequent resolution; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Kelso will cause to be filed a certified copy of said resolution with the 

Office of the State Treasurer; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council and any designee appointed by the City Council with authority to 

contribute or withdraw funds of the City of Kelso has received and read a copy of the prospectus and 

understands the risks and limitations of investing in the LGIP; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council attests by the signature of its members that it is duly authorized and 

empowered to enter into this agreement, to direct the contribution or withdrawal of City of Kelso 

monies, and to delegate certain authority to make adjustments to the incorporated transactional forms, 

to the individuals designated herein. 



NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council does hereby authorize the contribution 

and withdrawal of City of Kelso monies in the LGIP in the manner prescribed by law, rule and 

prospectus. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council has approved the Local Government Investment 

Pool Transaction Authorization Form (Form) as completed by the City of Kelso Finance Director and 

Incorporates said form into this resolution by reference and does hereby attest to its accuracy. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Kelso designates the City of Kelso Finance Director, 

the “authorized individual” to authorize all amendments, changes, or alterations to the Form or any 

other documentation including the designation of other individuals to make contributions and 

withdrawals on behalf of the City of Kelso. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this delegation ends upon the written notice, by any method set 

forth in the prospectus, of the City Council that the authorized individual has been terminated or that 

his or her delegation has been revoked.  The Office of the State Treasurer will rely solely on the City 

Council to provide notice of such revocation and is entitled to rely on the authorized individual’s 

instructions until such time as said notice has been provided. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Form as incorporated into this resolution or hereafter 

amended by delegated authority, or any other documentation signed or otherwise approved by the 

authorized individual shall remain in effect after revocation of the authorized individual’s delegated 

authority, except to the extent that the authorized individual whose delegation has been terminated 

shall not be permitted to make further withdrawals or contributions to the LGIP on behalf of the City of 

Kelso.  No amendments, changes, or alterations shall be made to the Form or any other documentation 

until the entity passes a new resolution naming a new authorized individual; and 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council acknowledges that it has received, read, and 

understood the prospectus as provided by the Office of the State Treasurer.  In addition, the City Council 



agrees that a copy of the prospectus will be provided to any person delegated or otherwise authorized 

to make contributions or withdrawals into or out of the LGIP and that said individuals will be required to 

read the prospectus prior to making any withdrawals or contributions or any further withdrawals or 

contributions if authorizations are already in place. 

 

 

ADOPTED by the City Council and SIGNED by the Mayor this _____ day of 

______________________, 2014. 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      MAYOR 

ATTEST/AUTHENTICATION: 

 

_____________________________ 

CITY CLERK 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

____________________________ 

CITY ATTORNEY 
















































	1. - 2014-06-03
	1.1. - 2014-05-20
	2.1. - AgSu Public Hearing 2014-2019 STIP Amendment 06-03-2014
	2.1.1. - STIP Attachment
	2.2. - Ag Su 2014 Consolidated Plan - Pub Hear
	3.1. - Ag Sum - Interlocal Agreement Cow Cnty Rural Ec Funding Visitors Center ...
	3.1.1. - VC parking lot
	3.2. - Ag Sum - Inter Agrmnt Cow Cnty Rural Ec Funding West Main Revit 06032014
	3.2.1. - West Main
	5.1. - Ag Su 2014 Consolidated Plan - Council Bus
	5.2. - Ag Sum - 2015-16 Budget Goals Discussion 05282014
	5.2.1. - 2014 Final Budget Goals - Work Plan 02062014
	6.1. - Ag Sum - Ordinance Franchise Renewal Weyerhauser-NORPAC 06032014
	6.1.1. - Ord - Wey NORPAC Energy Facility Franchise Renewal
	6.1.2. - Map Norpac Franchise
	6.1.3. - Ord 3120 Columbia Cowlitz RR Franchise
	6.2. - Ag Sum - Resolution Hearing Examiner Rules 06032014
	6.2.1. - Resolution - Hearing Examiner Rules of Procedure 06032014
	6.2.1.1. - Exhibit A - Hearing Examinier Res
	UCHAPTER I: GENERAL
	SECTION 1: APPLICATION
	SECTION 4: PARTIES’ REPRESENTATIVE REQUIRED
	SECTION 5: PRESIDING OFFICER
	SECTION 6: CONFLICTS

	UCHAPTER II: OPEN RECORD HEARINGS ON PERMIT APPLICATIONS
	SECTION 1: APPLICATION
	SECTION 2: RIGHTS OF PARTIES
	SECTION 3: RESPONSIBILITIES OF PARTIES
	SECTION 4: CONDUCT OF HEARINGS
	SECTION 5: WITHDRAWAL OF APPLICATION
	SECTION 6: RECOMMENDATIONS/DECISIONS

	SECTION 1: APPLICATION
	SECTION 3: FILING
	SECTION 4: DISMISSAL
	SECTION 5: WITHDRAWAL
	SECTION 6: DEFAULT
	SECTION 7: NOTICE OF HEARING

	SECTION 8: HEARING FORMAT
	SECTION 10: RECORD
	SECTION 11: EXAMINER’S DECISION



	6.3. - Agendasum LGIP Authorization 2014
	Sheet1

	6.3.1. - LGIP Resolution 2014
	6.3.2. - LGIP Prospectus
	6.3.3. - LGIP Transaction Form
	6.3.4. - LGIP Investment Policy

